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May 2, 2019 
 
Evergreen Brick Works Master Plan RFP 

 Questions and Responses 

 Notes from Info Session and Site Tour 
 
Questions and Responses  

1. Are you looking for all sub-consultant fees or just a list of consultants we would include? If so, 
are you looking for their fee structures (hourly rates, total hours allocated, etc.) as well? 
 
In the budget section, include the total amount you’re paying for sub-consultants, and the 
total hours each sub-consultant will devote. You do not need to provide their detailed fee 
structure. However, fee structures should be included for all firms or consultants that 
comprise the core team submitting the proposal.   

 
2. Given the 20-30 page limit, could you please confirm if you are looking for CVs and relevant 

experience for all sub-consultants? If so, can they be included as an appendix, in addition to the 
page limit? 
 
A brief overview of qualifications should be submitted for sub-consultants within the page 
limits, specifically if they are to complete a significant portion of the work or see through a 
deliverable. CV’s can be included in an appendix.   
 

3. The site visit discussed prioritizing the ten deliverables of the master plan. Could you please 
clarify whether you are looking for proponents to address each item in the submission at this 
RFP stage, or whether that is for the successful proponent? 
 
We would like the deliverables to be included in your work plan timeline, to be addressed in 
your methodology and approach to milestone delivery.  We are not looking for a vision of 
what might be included in the delivery.   

 
4. Will information be made available to the successful proponent on the current use of transport 

modes by visitors and statistics throughout the year? 
 
Information will be made available around shuttle bus service and cars. We do not have 
information around vehicles for hire, or visitors arriving with active transportation 
(pedestrians, cyclists, etc).  

 
5. Could you please elaborate on how Evergreen will measure a "broad audience" or what is the 

desired reach of public/community engagement? For example, are you seeking to engage 
hundreds of people, or thousands of people? 
 
Priority is given on the degree of diversity that the public engagement process will achieve.  
 
In terms of number of people engaged, we imagine deeper engagement reaching hundreds 
(like consultations, focus groups, etc.) and thousands being reached through social media or 
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other light touch methods. Reaching these numbers will be made possible through leveraging 
existing programs and activities on site, as well as looking at opportunities beyond our site to 
engage.  
 

6. Is Evergreen’s expectation that the master plan will include capital cost estimates prepared by a 
quantity surveyor? 
 
No. The plan will encompass scale and general estimates in anticipation of a follow-up capital 
project.  
 

7. How many final renderings are expected? 
 
5-8 based on need. We don’t want redundancy.  
~3 public space design and uses 
~3 new building design and uses 
 

8. Can you distribute a list of attendees from the visit today? 
 
We will share the list of firms that attended the info session and site visit. Please email 
lsaad@evergreen.ca to request the list of firms in attendance.   
 

9. Are all buildings included for the site condition assessment? Or are the new buildings excluded, 
i.e. 12, 14, 16 etc.? 
 
New buildings are excluded.  
 

10. On the site condition assessment, can you confirm if this excludes designated substance 
investigation? 
 
Yes, this excludes a designated substance assessment.  
 

11. Would you be able to provide us with the list of stakeholders involved in the process?  
 
Once the contract has been awarded we will provide a list of stakeholders to be engaged. This 
will comprise neighbouring communities, evergreen staff, program and community partners, 
as well as our site partners (City of Toronto, TRCA), and site tenants.  
 

12. Will Evergreen Brickworks consider working with City of Toronto Transportation Services and 
TTC as stakeholders to improve connectivity to the Evergreen Brickworks site for all modes? 
 
Yes 
 

13. Is there an anticipated budget for the Master Plan total consultant fees? 
 

The final allocated budget will be determined once we receive proposals. We have outlined 
our scope of work, and we ask that firms submit a realistic budget based on the work 
requested.  

 

mailto:lsaad@evergreen.ca
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14. Is there a specific list of sub-consultants that Evergreen wishes to see on the teams? 
 
No. Select your sub-consultants based on the work outlined and your internal capacity.  
 

15. Does Evergreen have a list of organizations or stakeholders for this process? Does Evergreen 
have working relationships with some or all of these organizations already? 
 
Yes. We will connect the consultants with our stakeholders once the contract has been 
awarded. However, there are stakeholders we might want to engage outside of our existing 
network as this process should expand our reach and identify ways to increase sight inclusion 
and visitorship.  
 

16. What role would Evergreen’s internal engagement and communications team have throughout 
this project? Will they take on a supportive part in this process or will they take on an advisory 
role? Has there been internal communications and engagement resources allocated for this 
project? 
 
Evergreen planning and communication staff will be key players in the process. The selected 
team will integrate with staff to form a cohesive message to the public as well as planning 
principles central to the Evergreen culture.  

 
17. Does Evergreen have a preferred in-house platform for online engagement?  

 
We are committed to coordinating online engagement in concert with Evergreen’s social 
media strategy.  
 

18. Whom will the project team be reporting and accountable to?  
 
The project team will be reporting to the Chief Placemaking Officer (Orit Sarfaty) and Project 
Manager (Lyna Saad), and ultimately accountable to the executive team (including the CEO, 
CDO, CFO and CPO) and with final plan approval from the board.  
 

19. Are the City and Province to be considered a stakeholder in this process? If so who will 
Evergreen be interested in engaging?  
 
Yes—we want to engage both the City and Province specifically around connectivity to the 
ravine system and increased transportation options to the site. Both the City and Province are 
interested in our site from a heritage and ecological restoration perspective.  
 

20. Who is responsible for Indigenous consultations for this project? What (if any) relationships 
does Evergreen have with these Nations and peoples?  
 
We have an Indigenous placemaking and programming team on site. We will facilitate the 
engagement with Indigenous partners.  
 

21. Should priority be placed on engaging with residents and organizations that are closer in 
proximity (considered neighbours) to Evergreen Brick Works? 
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The priority should be placed on engaging a diversity of residents. Within that, an emphasis 
should be placed on neighbours who are underrepresented in our visitorship (Saint James 
Town for example).  
 

22. Who is responsible for the costs related to engagement (venues, catering, A/V)? Are these to be 
costed out within this proposal or will these be arranged once a formal engagement plan has 
created and set?   
 
These should be costed out in the proposal. Once we understand the method of engagement 
being undertaken by the consultant, we will be able to identify areas where Evergreen can 
contribute resources to reduce overall costs.  
 

23. Does Evergreen have a budget identified for this Master Plan?  
 
The final allocated budget will be determined once we receive proposals. We have outlined 
our scope of work, and we ask that firms submit a realistic budget based on the work 
requested.  

 
24. Can we submit a proposal for just one piece of the work—since we are specialized.  

 
No, we’re looking for firms to reach out to each other in advance to propose teams and 
partnerships.  

 
25. Can we see who else is applying?  

 
We will share the list of firms that attended the info session and site visit. Please email 
lsaad@evergreen.ca to request the list of firms in attendance.   
 

26. What is the approximate length of the proposals? 
 
Proposals should be 20-30 pages. Electronic submissions only please (please think about how 
it will be read electronically).  

 
27. Is there a docket people can go to get the previous master plans? 

 
The previous plan can be found on the RFP blog.  
  

28. We understand that the proposal is subject to a 30 page limit. Does this include appendices (e.g. 
project summaries, curriculum vites)? 
 
This does not include appendices. You may include appendices for CVs and more detailed 
project summaries. However, all important details should be included within the 30 page 
limit.  
 

29. What is the extent of available background data and information which will be made available to 
the successful proponent (e.g. base mapping, as-built drawings, three-dimensional modelling, 
previous studies and reports, etc.)? 
 

mailto:lsaad@evergreen.ca
https://www.evergreen.ca/blog/entry/request-for-proposals-evergreen-brick-works-master-plan/
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We will provide you with IFC drawings and some as-built drawings and CAD drawings (though 
mainly for the east side of the site), and sketches for most buildings. We will provide some 
environmental and structural studies conducted during construction of our site and initial 
master planning process.  
  

30. What is the extent of work completed to date with respect to structural assessments, and what 
are the expectations for this project? 
 
Structural Assessments were conducted as part of the initial master plan. They will need to be 
redone for the west side of campus. Our Director of Facilities Management will be a resource.  
 

31. What is the extent of work completed to date with respect to heritage assessments, and what 
are the expectations for this project? 
 
Heritage inventory, an easement defining heritage significance, and assessments have been 
completed and should be considered when proposing new designs and uses.  
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Notes from Info Session and Site Tour 

 
Evergreen Brick Works Master Plan RFP 

Intro Session 
April 30, 2019 

 
Intro (Geoff Cape) 
 

 About Evergreen 
o Started in 1990 
o Originally focused on tree planting in cities 
o In response to primary environmental programs of the day that were essentially remote, 

we wanted to deal with action in the cities, urban ecology 
o Now our focus has grown beyond that and migrated to innovation in cities, low-carbon 

inclusive cities 
 History of the Site 

o Industrial quarry opened in about 1888-89 
o Ecological restoration in 1996, part of Evergreen’s early work 
o Buildings remained boarded up at that time 
o Previous Master Plans (posted on the original blog post) 

 Next Phase 
o We are heavily weighted to the east side of the campus  
o FCC Centre to open next year 
o Access and egress is a challenge 

 What’s worked well 
o Future Cities Canada and the FCC Centre - an innovation Hub that ties into a larger 

national program called Future Cities Canada. We are doing a lot at the national level 
that doesn't resemble Evergreen’s previous work. The FCC Centre is an anchor of this 
program, a venue within a subject realm where innovation and next generation thinking 
come together. We want to build a centre and a campus that is more aligned with this 
part of our ambition. 

o Community Support Network - working with Smart Cities Challenge finalists. The values 
of Evergreen are central  

o Children and children’s program/family program - spaces for the next generation of city-
builders 

o Events -  a big part of how we function, there is an ambition to increasingly align as 
many third party events as we can with our mandate, events are a big revenue driver for 
us 

o Funding and ambition 
 We’ll have to fundraise for this 
 We’re currently involved in a big programmatic idea with Ravine systems with 

City of Toronto 
 Thinking about how to be a gateway in the ravine system - the site’s connection 

to the ravine system and ravine systems connection to the city 
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Site Tour (Geoff Cape) 
 

 Young Welcome Centre 
o Heart of the physical space 
o It’s a great space, but is currently a bit dysfunctional - the coherence of space is not 

clear 
 TD Future Cities Centre 

o 56-57 square foot space 
o 3 main ideas within the space 

 1. Large scale convening (can fit 1800, comfortably fits 1000) 
 2. Exhibitions in two mains spaces 

 City Builder’s Gallery - exhibitions of the past, present and future of 
cities 

 Innovation Corridor - exhibit patrons of innovations in city-building 
 3. Training - will be building raised classrooms on the kilns, construction begins 

later this year. The idea is to have a space to train the next generation of leaders 
on how to move innovation forward 

 Pavilions 
o Enormous variety of programming happens in this space - we don’t want a design that is 

too narrow in focus (we don’t know what the next iteration of programming will be, 
need a space that can adapt) 

o We want to create an inspirational space with diverse potential 
o Idea that we can think about geo-thermal heating across the site 
o Building 5 - mostly storage 
o Building 1 - currently used for day care program and some children’s space, not fully 

utilized, has the potential to be much more 
 Terrace near the water 

o Building near the water - was originally going to be a restaurant, but didn’t happen. 
Currently operates as a woodworking space. There is lots of external interest 
in/proposals for this space and making it something great.  

 Children’s Garden 
o Over the past 30 years a lot of our work has been in creating great children’s spaces 

 
Review of RFP (Orit Sarfaty) 

 Objectives 
o We've grown into the space, but not entirely 
o Set a reputation for ourselves to be able to iterate, be flexible, and innovative 
o Need to think about how to keep a nimble space that welcomes and anticipates change 
o We’ve asked for an element of business planning in Master Plan - we are a social 

enterprise and our sustainability depends on earned revenue 
o We want to find themes  that cross over buildings and spaces, not look at this as if it 

were disparate spaces, but have some narrative that is universal 
o We will be following this Master Plan process with a capital campaign 
o We want to hear from our team but also the public about the possibility of this place 
o We’ve asked  for a specific public engagement process, we want to hear from you how 

to engage the public in an authentic and iterative way, build on partnerships and get to 
the heart of why people come here  

o Inclusivity and diversity as one of the mandates for this place 
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 Deliverables 
o We are a diverse site - social enterprise, community space, private events, park, daycare 

centre etc.  
o Looking for a comprehensive idea at what 21st century places look like 

 Multiuse 
 Changes with seasons and programs 
 Searching for a team that can be agile with us 

 Proposal components 
o We encourage teams to itemize based on deliverables so we have an understanding of 

scale and if there are ways to prioritize and categorize elements together (we 
understand we have an ambitious set of deliverables) 

o We want to understand you as a team, how you work to together, methodology 
o The process will follow a set of milestones and include a steering committee 

spearheaded by Orit and Lyna, and some external stakeholders - we'd like to know from 
you what the timeline is for this. We imagine: 

 4th quarter 2019 -  plan is finalized 
 1st quarter 2020 - presentation of plan 

 Evaluation of proposal 
o Looking for a team that is as diverse is as the needs of the space 

 Programmatic vision, heritage etc. 
o We’re going to be budgeting for the next three years in November 
o We want to take these ideas and move fast into the next three years (functional and 

immediate) 
 
 

 


